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Coast Company, L.P., Williams Field Services

Company, and Williams Gulf Coast Gethering

Company, L.L.C.
ORDER ON REHEARING
(Issued May 15, 2003)
1 In this order, the Commission denies requests for rehearing by Transcontinenta Gas

Pipe Line Corporation (Transco), Williams Fied Services Company, Williams Gas
Processing - Gulf Coast Co., L.P., and Williams Gulf Coast Gathering Co., L.L.C.
(collectively, WFS), and Keyspan Dedlivery Companies (Keyspan) of the Commisson's
Order on Initial Decision, issued on September 5, 2002 (September 5, 2002 Order).t This
order isin the public interest because it ensures that the Commission's unbundling and
gathering policies are not used to circumvent the Commisson's effective regulation of
interstate trangportation of natural gas.

l. Background

2. In the September 5, 2002 Order, the Commission generdly affirmed the findings of
the Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) in an Initid Decison (1.D.) issued on June 4, 2002.2
Based on the record and the AL Js findings, the Commission reasserted Natural Gas Act
(NGA) jurisdiction over the gathering rates and services provided on the subject soundown

Ishell Offshore Inc. v. Transcontinental Gas Pi pe Line Corp., &t a., 100 FERC
161,254 (2002).

2ghell Offshore Inc. v. Transcontinental Gas PipeLine Corp., et d., 99 FERC
163,034 (2002).
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North Padre Idand (NPI) system facilities® Specificaly, the Commission affirmed the
ALJsfinding that the Commisson'stest established in Arkla Gathering Services Co.
(Arkla)* for ressserting NGA jurisdiction was met becauise Transco and its gathering
afiliate, WFS, acted in concert in planning for and offering offshore gathering service to
Shell Offshore Inc. (Shell) on the NP1 system facilitiesin a manner that frustrates the
Commisson's effective regulation of Transco.® In addition, the Commission found that, on
the basis of the record and the circumstances presented in this case, Transco and WFS had
violated Section 5 of the Outer Continental Shelf Lands Act (OCXSLA)6 and the
Commission'simplementing regulations’ by effectively denying open access. Asthe
remedy, the Commission reasserted NGA jurisdiction and, finding that an unbundled
gathering rate for the subject services of 1.69 cents per Dth fals within the zone of
reasonableness, ordered Transco to file to establish such rate, as well as arate schedule and
pro forma service agreement, pursuant to Section 5 of the NGA. The Commission also
affirmed the ALJs decision to dismiss a complaint grounded in the same facts filed by
Superior Natura Gas Corporation and Walter Oil & Gas Corporation (collectively, Walter)
against WFS, in Docket No. RP02-144-000, based on a settlement of the parties.

3. On rehearing, Transco and WFS contest the Commission's reassertion of
jurisdiction and numerous aspects of the September 5, 2002 Order. They varioudy argue
that the Commisson outright lacks any jurisdiction under the NGA to regulate gathering
rates or services and that the Commission misapplied its Arkla test, asserting that they did
not act in concert to frustrate regulation of Transco. Further, they claim that the
Commission's action conflicts with its spin-down policies. Regarding the application of

the Arkla test, based on their various interpretations of that test, they assert that they did not
act in concert to frudtrate regulation of Transco. Finaly, they assert that the Commission

3The NPl system facilities are described in the 1.D., 99 FERC at 65,238-39.

467 FERC | 61,257 at 61,871 (1994), order onreh'g 69 FERC ] 61,280 (1994),
ren'g denied, 70 FERC | 61,079 (1995), reconsideration denied, 71 FERC 61,297
(1995).

SSeptember 5, 2002 Order, 100 FERC 161,254 at P 1.
®43 U.S.C. §§ 1301-1356 (1994).

"Regulations Under the OCSLA Governing the Movement of Natural Gas on
Facilities on the Outer Continental Shelf, Order No. 639, FERC Stats. & Regs. 131,097
(2000), order onreh'g, Order No. 639-A, FERC Stats. & Regs. 131,103 (2000),
enforcement enjoined, Chevron U.SA., Inc., et a. v. FERC, 193 F. Supp. 2d 54 (D.D.C.
2002), appeal docketed, No. 02-5056 (D.C. Cir. Feb. 5, 2002).
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erred in finding aviolation of the OCSLA and in setting arate remedy. Transco and WFS
have raised no new arguments that support a grant of rehearing.

. Discussion
A. Jurisdiction

4, On rehearing, Transco and WFS question the Commisson's authority under the NGA
to reassert jurisdiction over the gathering rates and services provided over the subject
fadlities. Ther agumentsfail, in large part, because they rest on an incorrect

understanding of the jurisdictiona foundation of the September 5, 2002 Order. NGA
Section 1(b) gives the Commission jurisdiction over natural gas companies engaged in
jurisdictiona interstate trangportati on,® and NGA Sections 4 and 5 provide that the
Commission has authority to regulate the rates charged by natural gas companies''in
connection with" interstate transporteti on.® Our ruling is based on Northern Natural Gas
Co. v. FERC (Northern Natura), where the Eighth Circuit Court of Appeds concluded that
the Commission "may regulate rates charged for trangportation on the pipeine's own
gathering facilities performed in connection with jurisdictiona interstate transportation.°
Accordingly, the Court upheld the Commission's jurisdiction to set unbundled gathering
rates for gathering services performed by interstate pipelines in connection with their own
jurisdictiona open access trangportation services. It is on this basis that the Commisson
regulates Transco's gathering rates and services under Part 284 of its open access
regulations™ for gathering Transco performsin connection with its interstate Part 284
transmission services such asits | T-Feeder servicesin the OCS.'?

5. In Arkla, the Commisson held that if an affiliated gatherer acts in concert with its
pipdine affiliate and in a manner that frustrates the Commisson's regulaion of the
interstate pipdine, the Commission may disregard the separate corporate structures and

815 U.S.C. § 717(b) (1997).

915 U.S.C. §§ 717c, 717d (1997).

19929 F.2d 1261, 1263 (8th Cir. 1991), cert. denied, 502 U.S. 856 (1991).
1118 C.F.R. Part 284 (2002).

12See Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corp., FERC Gas Taiff, Third Revised
Volume No. 1, Ninth Revised Sheet No. 33.
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treet the pipeline and gatherer as asingle natura gas company. 13 The Commission would
thereby regulate the gathering activities asif the gathering facilities were owned directly by
an interstate pipeline 4

6. On gpped of the Commission's Arkla ordersin Conoco, Inc. v. FERC (Conoco), the
Court summarized the Commission's pogtion as follows:

[W]hile the Commission believes it has no jurisdiction over gathering
provided by atruly independent affiliate, it also holds thet its jurisdiction
over interstate trangportation obligates it to ensure that there is no collusion
between the interstate pipeline and the gatherers to manipulate the interstate
market by determining who will have accesstoit.*°

While the Court was not presented with an actual reassertion of jurisdiction in Conoco,® it
found that: "we have no reason to doubt the Commission's concluson that a
nonjurisdictiona entity could act in a manner that would change its Satus by enabling an
affiliated interstate pipeine to manipulate access and costs of gathering, the precise
concern of Northern Natural, 929 F.2d at 1270."7

7. In this case, as aresult of what was, in essence, a sham spin-down transaction
designed to circumvent the Commission's regulation, Transco, or The Williams Companies

1BArkla, 67 FERC at 61,871.

Y4,

1590 F.3d 536, 549 (D.C. Cir. 1996) (emphasis added), cert. denied sub nom.
Amoco Energy Trading Corp. v. FERC, 519 U.S. 1142 (1997).

16The Court, however, rejected the Commission's claim that it had jurisdiction to
require an "independently operated affiliated gatherer” to execute a "default contract” asa
condition of abandonment. Conoco, 90 F. 3d at 551.

17Conoco, 90 F.3d at 549. The Court quoted with approval the following genera
rule gpplied by the Commission: "[a]n agency may disregard the corporate form in the
interest of public convenience, fairness, or equity. This principle of alowing agenciesto
disregard corporate formsis flexible and practica in nature. Corporations may be regarded
as one entity for the purposes with which the agency immediately concerned even though
they are legitimately digtinct for other purposes” 1d.
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(TWC)18 corporate family, is atempting to extract substantidly higher charges from the
same sarvices previoudy provided by Transco. But for the "spin-down™ and concerted
action by Transco/WFS, the Commission would continue to exercise jurisdiction over
Transco's jurisdictiond transportation, dong with the gathering services provided in
connection with it, to ensure just and reasonable rates. Asthe ALJfound, however, the
parties concerted action and abuse of market power frustrates the Commission's regulation
by permitting the TWC corporate family to benefit from what Transco done could not
accomplish, creating the opportunity for undue discrimination and other anti-competitive
actionsin the provison of gathering services in connection with transportation.19 Itison
this bass that the Commission treated both entities as one entity and resumed jurisdiction
over the gathering rates and services asif the spin-down had not occurred and Transco il
owned and controlled the subject facilities.

8. Further, as the ALJ also recognized,? in addition to circumventing our NGA rate
regulation, the Commission policies that were frustrated by Transco/WFS's concerted
actions ultimately were the Commission's open access policies. Aswe stated in Order No.
636:

Thefirgt god isto ensure that al shippers have meaningful accessto the
pipdine transportation grid so that willing buyers and sdllers can meet ina
competitive, national market to transact the mogt efficient dedls possible. As
the House Committee Report to the Decontrol Act stated: "All sellers must
be able to reasonably reach the highest-bidding buyer in an increasingly
national market. All buyers must be free to reach the lowest-sdlling
producer, and obtain shipment of its gas to them on even terms with other
supplies:' [citation omitted] >

18TWC isthe corporate parent of both Transco and WFS, holding 100 percent of the
interest in both effiliates.

19see 1.D., 99 FERC at 65,254-60.
20 D., 99 FERC at 65,259.

21p peline Service Obligations and Revisons to Regulations Governing Sdlf-
Implementing Transportation; and Regulation of Natural Gas Pipelines After Partid
Wellhead Decontrol, Order No. 636, FERC Stats. & Regs. 130,939 at 30,393, order on
reh'g, Order No. 636-A, FERC Stats. & Regs. 130,950, order on reh'g. Order No. 636-B,
61 FERC 161,272 (1992), aff'd in part and remanded in part sub nom., United Didtribution
Cos. v. FERC, 88 F.3d 1105 (D.C. Cir. 1996), cert. denied, 520 U.S. 1224 (1997), order on
(continued...)
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0. Here, by demanding egregioudy high rates for gethering, Transco/WFS effectively
barred accessto the interstate grid of reasonably-priced supplies of natura gas. Indeed,
Shell shut-in its production in the face of prohibitively high rates demanded by
Transco/WFS. Thus, Transco/WFS's concerted actions in exacting unreasonable rates and
conditions of service resulted in natura gas supply physicaly being denied accessto the
interstate market. Moreover, the public would suffer from reduced competition in the
interstate trangportation and sale of naturd gas because, asthe ALJ found, "[d]itortions of
price sgnas by monopoly abuse of rate-payer producers, on along-term cumulative basis,
cause digtortions of production and development decisions that ultimately cause bad
economic results?? The Commission sought to prevent the kind of manipulation of both
physical access and costs (in the form of rates) of gathering in connection with interstate
transportation addressed in Northern Natural and Conoco.

10.  Onrehearing, Transco and WFS argue that the Commission's reassertion of
jurisdiction in the September 5, 2002 Order conflicts with Conoca's ruling rgecting the
Commisson's clam that it had ongoing NGA jurisdiction to require an "independently
operated affiliated gatherer” to execute a default contract as a condition of abandonment. >
The Court, however, distinguished between "atruly independent gatherer," which it
recognized would not be subject to areassertion of jurisdiction under Arkla, and a gatherer
like WFS acting in "colluson” with its effiliate pipeline such that the corporate sructure
could be ignored.

11.  Transco and WFS assumein their arguments that, pursuant to NGA Section 1(b),24
the Commission can never regulate gathering. These arguments overlook that the
Commission has "in connection with" NGA jurisdiction, acknowledged in Northern Natural,
if the pipeline owns the fadilities On that basis, the Commission does, in fact, regulate
Transco's own gathering rates and srvices?® The only basis for the temporary absence of

21(__ continued)
remand, Order No. 636-C, 78 FERC 1 61,186 (1997), order onreh'g,
83 FERC 161,210 (1998).

2500 1.D., 99 FERC 65,252,
23Conoco, 90 F.3d at 551.

2ANGA Section 1(b) states that "the provisions of thisAct . . . shall not apply to . . .
the facilities used for . . . the production or gathering of naturd ges."

2Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corp., FERC Gas Taiff, Third Revised Volume
(continued...)
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rate and service jurisdiction here was Transco's claimed "sal€' of the NPl system facilities
to WFS in a spin-down transaction which had the appearance of placing the gathering
fadilitiesin the hands of an "independent” entity that performed no trangportation of gas and
which, therefore, could not be classfied as ajurisdictiond naturd gas company subject to
the NGA. Inlight of the record evidence of concerted action, the ALJ found that
Transco/WFS did not act as independent entities. Accordingly, the Commission found it
appropriate to pierce what the record reflected was a tissue-paper thin corporate velil
established by Transco and WFS through an interna reorganization amounting to nothing
more than accounting entries. Moreover, it should be emphasized that the September 5,
2002 Order does not assert NGA certificate jurisdiction under NGA Section 7 over the
gathering facilities themsalves but only reclams jurisdiction over the gathering rates and
sarvices just as the Commission currently regulates gathering rates and services on
Transco's system.

12.  Transco arguesthat the concern addressed by the Courtsin Conoco and Northern
Natural as to manipulation of access and costs of gathering related to a bundled, merchant
pipeine using its own gathering facilities to discriminate in favor of its own gasto the
disadvantage of third-party shippers and that such concern does not apply here because
Transco has unbundled its trangportation and sdes?® Transcoisincorrect. Northern
Natural aso dedlt with a trangportation pipeline, not a merchant pipdine, with unbundled
gathering rates. In any event, as the Commission recognized in Northern Natural Gas Co.,
"excessve rates for gathering services provided in connection with open-access
trangportation could be used as a barrier to open-access transportation and would also
defeat the godl of lower pricesto consumers?’ The Commission recognizes that Transco
does not produce gas in competition with shipper gas supplies, but thet fact isirrdevant
sance the impact of Transco's and WFS's actions with respect to gathering isto effectively
cut off the market from potentia suppliers a the wellhead, thereby contravening the
Commission's, and, indeed, Congress's open-access gods. Asthe Court in Conoco
recognized, the Commission believes "that itsjurisdiction over interstate trangportation

25(_..continued)
No. 1, Ninth Revised Sheet No. 33; see dso Sea Robin Pipeline Co., 93 FERC 1 61,287
(2000), reh'g denied, 94 FERC 161,137 (2001) (requiring Sea Robin Pipdine Co. tofile
separatdly stated rates for transportation and gathering servicesin itsrate schedules).

2Citing Northern Natural, 929 F.2d at 1270.

2743 FERC 61,473 at 62,161 (1988), reh'g denied, 44 FERC 1 61,384 (1988),
af'd, Northern Natural, 929 F.2d 1261 (8th Cir. 1991), cert. denied, 502 U.S. 856 (1991).
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obligates it to ensure that there is no collusion between the interstate pipdine and gatherers
to manipulate the interstate market by determining who will have accessto it."?

B. Congsgtency With Spin-down and Unbundling Policies

13.  Transco and WFS argue that the September 5, 2002 Order reversesthe
Commisson's unbundling policy on offshore gathering by pipeline affiliates and
contradicts the Spin-down Orders.?® Transco and WFS argue that the Commission
contradicted findings in the Spin-down Ordersthat: Transco did not need to retain
ownership of its NPl gathering facilities to ensure the orderly flow of gasinto its
downgtream transmisson mainlines, the spin-down is consstent with the unbundling
policies of Order No. 636 and should promote competition within the gathering industry in
the long-run; and the issue of competition is not relevant to whether the Commission will
regulate an affiliate gatherer's rates or terms and conditions of service after it acquires
abandoned facilities®® Further, Transco and WFS argue that the Commission knew the
leved of the gathering rate WFS proposed to Shell because the Commission's order on
rehearing in the spin-down proceeding was issued after Shell had filed its complaint.

14. First, the September 5, 2002 Order does not revoke the transfer to WFS, and does
not reassert NGA Section 7 jurisdiction over the subject facilities, but rather reingtates the
Commission’s "in connection with" rate and service NGA jurisdiction under NGA Sections
4 and 5 in the same manner asif Transco gill owned the facilities. Further, the
Commission's Spin-down Orders focused on the physical characteritics of the facilities to
resolve the issue of whether the NPI system facilities should be classfied as gathering by
applying the Commission's modified primary function test as gpplicable to OCS facilities.
The issue of comptition following the spin-down, therefore, was not relevant particularly

28Conoco, 90 F.3d at 549.

2%0n July 25, 2001, the Commission issued an order gpproving Transco's gpplication
to abandon certain facilities, including the NPl system facilities, to WGP, WFSs parent
company. In addition, the Commission granted WGP's request to declare that the facilities,
upon transfer to WGP, would function primarily as gathering. In an order denying
rehearing, issued on December 19, 2001, the Commission upheld itsrulings. These orders
are referred to in this order as the Spin-down Orders. Transcontinental Gas Pipdine Corp.,
96 FERC 1 61,115 (2001), reh'g denied, 97 FERC {61,296 (2001), review pending,
Williams Gas Processing-Gulf Coast Co., L.P., & a. v. FERC, Case No. 02-1053, ¢ al.
(filed Feb. 11, 2002).

citing 96 FERC at 61,434-35; 97 FERC at 62,381.
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to that inquiry. Moreover, the Spin-down Orders predate the record established in this
complaint case of Transco's and WFS's concerted actions that circumvented the
Commission's regulation. The record here reflects that Shell was not even gpprised of
WFS's demand for a 12-cent rate and the dedication of reserves and jurisdictiona impact
clauses until just before the date of transfer of the facilities to WFS, which does not reflect
good-faith negotiations with Shell.

15. Further, asthe ALJ observed in the Initial Decison, the finding in the July 25, 2001
Spin-down Order that the Commission would approve the spin-down of gathering facilities
regardiess of the competitive circumstances on the facilities, “is not free license for the
pipeline and its affiliate to abuse their market power once the spin-down is implemented.
Shell has no competitive aternatives. Transco's facilities are the only meansto get
production from the NPI area to onshore markets. The resulting increase in Shdll's case
would double the pre-existing 8-cent I T-feeder rate, which covered service for
approximately 230 miles of facilities, amply for the right to use a 3.08-mile segment of
the same facilities now declared to be gathering. Thus, WFS and Transco seek to gain
revenues, not from enhanced efficiency or added service, but smply from the opportunity
afforded from regulatory change.

w31

16. In short, the Spin-down Orders regarding classification of these facilities do not
gtand for the proposition that the Commission expected or endorsed the imposition of
anticompetitive rates, and terms and conditions of service following the spin-down by an
affiliate acting in concert with Transco. Moreover, as set forth in Arkla, the Commission's
spin-down palicies include the opportunity for aggrieved partiesto file acomplaint and to
seek our reassertion of NGA jurisdiction.

C. Application of the Arkla Test

17. In their requests for rehearing, Transco and WFS have attempted to twist the
Commission's gpplication of the Arkla test into knots by arguing about the proper sequence
of looking for "concerted action” and "frustration of Commission regulation.” Transco and
WEFS argue that the proper application of the Arkla te firgt involves an inquiry into
whether frustration of regulation of the pipeine has occurred before turning to the issue of
whether the pipeline and its affiliate were acting in concert with one another. The
Commission's description of the Arkla test as having two "prongs’ (concerted action and
frugtration of the Commission's regulation) was not meant to convey the notion that the test
involved a complicated timing sequence. The proper gpplication of the test involves
nothing more complicated than the common-sense notion that the behavior here thet gives

3l D., 99 FERC at 65,237.
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cause for usto reassart jurisdiction conssts of creating the illusion of a separate gathering
entity to evade the Commission's regulation. Prior to the spin-down, the Commisson was
regulating Transco's gathering "in connection with" Transco's transportation. But for the
sham spin-down of the NPI system facilities, the Commission would continue its
juridiction over Transco's trangportation and gathering. The sham spin-down aong with
the concerted action between Transco and WFS dlowed them to evade the "in connection
with" link to our jurisdiction and permitted WFS to extract money that Transco, as anatural
gas company, providing both services done could not. If WFS, the Transco-affiliated
gatherer, were truly independent, or if it had been sold to a truly independent gatherer, we
would not have the "in connection with" jurisdiction, which, under Northern Natural and
Conoco, is premised on gathering being provided by the natura gas pipeline subject to our
NGA Section 1(b) jurisdiction.

1. Concerted Action

18.  Transco and WFS contest the Commission’sfinding that they acted in concert with
one another. Their arguments in this regard repest in substance the same arguments that
were correctly rejected by the ALJ>

19. In addition, WFS asserts that the concerted action part of the Arkla test requires
proof that "the pipeline would benefit by certain actions taken by the affiliate in conjunction
with its affiliated pipeline’ but that, here, the only benefit to Transco which the Initial
Decison findsis the indirect benefit of the parent company's profits. According to WFS,
if benefitting the corporate parent is relevant, then every spin-down in which cogs are
reduced, or earnings are enhanced, will satisfy the concerted activity standard, so that
juridiction will reaffix to virtudly every spin-down.

20. Wedisagree. First, Arkla does not provide an exclusive list of concerted actions
that would trigger the Commission’s authority to disregard the corporate form.
Soecificdly, in Arkla, after the Commission set forth examples of such concerted actions,
it added that: “[a]lthough an affiliate could undertake other types of anti-competitive
activities, the Commisson’s jurisdiction would be implicated only where the abuseis
directly related to the ffiliat€’ s unique relationship with an interstate pipeli ne”>* Thus,
Arkla does not redtrict the Commission from considering other types of anti-competitive

32560 1.D., 99 FERC 65,239-43.
33Quoting Arkla, 67 FERC at 61,871.

34Arkla, 67 FERC at 61,871.

-10-
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activities aslong asthey are directly related to the ffiliat€’ s unique relationship with an
interstate pipeline. Indeed, the record in this proceeding shows that this standard is met
because the frudtration of the Commission’s regulation of Transco arose from WFS's
unique relaionship to Transco. Second, the Commission did, in fact, find a benefit to
Transco in the form of increased profits to the parent company, TWC, as aresult of the
spin-down. However, that was not the only factor upon which the Commission based its
decison. Findly, profitsto the corporate parent as aresult of the spin-down show that
there is a continuing connection between the pipeline and the gathering ffiliate, unlike
what would be the case with an unaffiliated third party.

2. Frustration of Regulation

21. In the September 5, 2002 Order, the Commission found that Transco and WFS
possessed monopoly market power with respect to the gathering and transportation of
natura gas on the NPl system because producers like Shell have no reasonable dternative
to flowing their gas through WFSs gathering pipeline and into Transco's NGA-
jurisdictional 1T-feeder transmission pipeline to access downstream gas markets > By
doubling Transco's previous combined rate for providing gathering and transmission service
from 8 cents to 16 cents per Dth within the relevant market of gathering on the NPI system
facilities and by demanding anticompetitive, unduly discriminatory terms and conditions of
sarvice, Transco and WS abused their monopoly market power in circumvention of our
regulation of Transco. For example, as part of its offer to Shell, WFS demanded a
dedication of reserves condition, which would effectively lock in Shell as acaptive
customer and discourage possible future competitive aternatives for Shell's production.
Further, the Commission reasoned that, if WFS demands such a dedication of reserves
condition from dl of its NP1 producers, it would protect its monopoly leverage to demand
egregious rates in the future. If al NP1 producers are prevented cumulatively from having
their production gathered by a new entrant, then al future NPI production would never be
able to avoid the Transco/WFS monopoly, absent regulation. Such a condition frustrates
the Commission's goa of fostering open-access competition in the OCS in the Gulf of
Mexico. In addition, the "jurisdictional impact” clause in the proposed gathering
agreement, whereby WS sought to condition access to the gathering service by requiring
Shell to agree not to take action that would result in the Commisson's reassertion of NGA
jurisdiction, would impede lowering the rate to ajust and reasonable level. In sum, by
demanding a monopoliticaly excessve rate and anti-competitive terms and conditions of
service resulting in the shut-in of the subject gas supplies, the Commission's open access

3SSeptember 5, 2002 Order, 100 FERC ] 61,254 at P 50.
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regulation was frugtrated. Thus, the single entity, Transco/WFS, frugtrated the
Commission's regulation over the rates and access to services provided by Transco.

22.  The Commission agreed with the ALJ that, if such abuse of market power happens
repeatedly, it may have a Sgnificant cumulative effect on downstream markets by ditorting
producers price signals.®” The Commission explained that the public would thereby suffer
from the reduced competition in the interstate transportation and sde of natura gas and that
these digtortions of production and development decisions could aso have a negative
economic impact.3®

23. In generd, Transco and WFS oppose the Commission’s finding that their concerted
actions frugtrated the Commission’s effective regulation of Transco. Transco and WFS
adlege that the Commission both misinterpreted and misapplied the test that the

Commission set forth in Arkla as abass for reasserting NGA jurisdiction. Their principa
clam essentidly amounts to this the Commisson isusing the just and reasonable standard
gpplicable to cost-based rates to evauate whether the rate being charged is so high asto
warrant aresssertion of jurisdiction, which they assert is a standard the Commission can
only goply if it has jurisdiction.

24.  With respect to the finding that the 8-cent gathering rate demanded for service on
the NPI system facilities frustrated the Commission’s effective regulation of Transco,

WFS arguesthat it is exempt from NGA regulation pursuant to the Spin-down Orders, S0 it
does not frusirate NGA regulation for WFS to charge anon-NGA rate. In the dternative,
WEFS argues that the 8-cent gathering rate is not egregious because it is below what it
assertsisa“market-based rate” at NPI. Transco states that the relevant market in this case
encompasses the larger market centers downstream, such as Station 30, instead of being
limited to the NPl system facilities. Further, Transco states that it does not possess market
power with respect to transportation or gathering services at NP1, and there has been no
abuse of any such power becauseit is offset by Shell’s monopsony power and because the
market should encompass the larger market centers downstream.

25. Transco's and WFS's clam that the Commission gpplied the Arkla test in acircular
fashion misconstrues the Commisson's order. At issue is whether the 8-cent rate resulted
in acircumvention of our rate regulation of Transco. To determine if that occurred, the 8-
cent rate must be compared to the rate that Transco would otherwise be limited to under

365eeid. at P 51.
371d. at P 53.

38&-

-12 -
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our rate regulation, i.e. ajust and reasonable rate. In evauating the proposed rate under the
Arkla test, ajust and reasonable rate can be either cost-based or market-based, but the
record did not support afinding that Transco/WFS lacked market power so that the 8-cent
rate could be classified as ajust and reasonable market-based rate. To find that arate for a
service is areasonable market-based rate, there must be a determination that the provider of
the service lacks market power. The Commission's sandard for determining whether to
authorize market-based rates requires a showing that the customers have "good dternatives'
in the relevant geographic market that are "available” to the customers>®  Here, the record
shows that there were no aternatives to Transco/WFS's gathering services that were
available to Shell and the other customers. Thus, the record shows that Transco/WFS have
market ggwer such that any rate they demand would not be constrained by a competitive
market.

26.  Accordingly, aswe explained earlier, the evauation of the 8-cent per Dth rate
Transco/WFS demanded could only be accomplished by comparing it to what an unbundled
gathering rate that recovers the costs of providing the service, including a reasonable profit,
would be for the subject services. Having found that Transco/WFSSs rate greeatly exceeded a
rate caculated on acost basis, and that certain terms and conditions of servicein the
Transco/WFS service agreement were anti-competitive, the Commission found that the
frugtration of regulation requirement of the Arkla test also was met thereby judtifying a
resssertion of its NGA rate and service jurisdiction.

27.  Transco and WFS argue that our decision with respect to the rlevant market is
incong stent with the Commisson's Order Denying Rehearing in Mid L ouisiana Gas Co.,

395ee, eq., Copiah County Storage Co., 99 FERC 1 61,316 (2002) (authorizing
market-based rates for storage and hub services based upon afinding that the applicant lacks
market power because it has asmdl market sharein a highly competitive production area
where numerous storage and interruptible hub service dternatives exist); Missssppi River
Transmission Corp., 95 FERC { 61,141, reh'g denied, 95 FERC
161,460 (2001) (rgjecting proposa for market-based transmission rate because applicant
did not have any dternatives in the relevant geographic market).

“40The record indicates that there are no available aternative pipelinesto Transco's
transmisson and &ffiliated gathering pipeline network. According to Commisson Staff
witness Sullivan, Transco's transmission and affiliated gathering pipeline network currently
have a 100 percent share of the market for trangportation of offshore natural gas suppliesin
the NPI production areato onshore markets, resulting in a Herfindahl-Hirschman Index
(HHI) of 10,000. Therefore, Commission Staff witness Sullivan concludes that Transco
and its gathering affiliates are a monopoly and have market power. See Exh. S-1 at 14-18.
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69 FERC 161,303 (1994) (Mid-Lalll),** in which the Commission stated that, with
respect to terminating default contracts, it will ook a gathering rates in the region to
assess the reasonableness of pipdine-affiliate gathering rates. The Commission did not
intend itscomment in Mid-Lalll related to its rgected default contract policy that rates,
terms and conditions offered by gatherers "in the region” would be looked at, to overturn
the Commission's well-established policies on market-based rate anadysis. Analyzing
market-based rates includes a determination of whether customers have good aternative
sarvices available. In the current proceeding, the Commission looked at other market rates
for gathering in the region, but concluded that such gathering rates have no relevance
because they are from different, unconnected geographic markets that are not available as
an dternative market for Shell to acquire gathering services at competitive prices.

28. WFSaso clamsthat Commission precedent shows the 8-cent rate is reasonable
because it asserts that, in Tennessee Gas Pipeline Co. (Tennessee Gas),*? the Commission
"approved"” a 17.67-cent rate for a 2.44-mile haul in a spin-down from the Tennessee Gas
Pipeline sysem. WFSs clam isinaccurate and irrdlevant. In Tennessee Gas, the
Commission never "approved” such arate and, instead, considered alegationsthat a 17.67-
cent gathering rate would be charged for service on facilities that were to be spun down and
that such rate was anti-competitive and would violate the OCSLA's open and
nondiscriminatory access provisons. The Commission found these alegations speculative
and gated that the offshore producers could file a complaint with the Commission based on
evidence that the rate being charged denied them access to the spun-down fecilities®

29. WFSadsoarguesthat Shell charges a 12.2-cent gathering rate a NPI for the same
gas reserves which WFS would charge 8 cents for gathering. We agree with the ALJ that
the Shell rate, which is anon-jurisdictiond rate Shell chargesitsdf and a co-owner in
unknown and possbly substantialy different circumstances over different-szed facilities
upstream of the subject facilities, provides no support for WFS's argument.**

30. WEFS argues that the Commission erred in claiming that the actions of WFS, an
affiliated gatherer, should not be compared to the actions of an unaffiliated, third-party

“IMid Louisiana Gas Co., et d., 65 FERC { 61,166 (1993) (Mid-La 1), reh'g denied,

67 FERC 161,255 (1994) (Mid-La 1), reh'g denied, 69 FERC 161,303 (1994) (Mid-La
10).

4281 FERC 1 61,352 (1997), order denying ren'g, 93 FERC 1 61,080 (2000).

43 Tennessee Gas, 81 FERC at 62,650; 93 FERC at 61,218,

#see1.D., 99 FERC at 65,250.
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gatherer, which presumably could charge 8 cents, without invoking the Commission's NGA
jurisdiction. WFS clamsthat, snce a third-party gatherer could act in the same manner as
WES, this case does not meet the Arkla criteriarelied onin the Initid Decison. WFS aso
claims that, because the September 5, 2002 Order does not dispute that a third-party
gatherer could have acted the same as WFS, WFS did nothing directly related to its unique
affiliated relationship with Transco.

3L In Arkla, the Commission held that the possibility for reassertion of NGA
juridiction is limited to behavior "directly related to the affiliate [gatherer's| unique
relationship with an interstate pipeline™  Accordingly, the Commission sets a different
standard with respect to affiliated gatherers rather than unaffiliated gatherers because
affiliated gatherers pose a greater potentia risk of concerted action that could circumvent
or frugtrate the Commission's regulation of interstate pipelines. Whereas an affiliated
gatherer acting in concert with its affiliated interdtate pipeline has an incentive to maximize
profits for the corporate parent, an unaffiliated gatherer has no such incentive. Moreover,
when regulated monopolies are verticdly integrated, such arrangements are "more likely to
involve adverse net economic effects. Integration may enable [the regulated entity] to
obtain from an unregulated activity the monopoly profits which effective reguletion of the
franchised monopoly precludes™® By spinning off gathering fadilities to its affiliates,
Transco (as afirm) isin a better position to obtain the monopoly profits thet the
Commission's regulation of its trangportation function is intended to prevent. The
continued regulation of Transco may aso help to protect the combined entity againgt the
adverse consequences of raising rates. Also, an independent gatherer that raised rates
would have aloss in throughput resulting from such an increase.

32. Findly, WFS clams that Shell was not subject to unduly discriminatory rates and
contract provisonsin violation of the NGA because Shell never paid for gathering on
WFSs NPl system facilities before the NPl spin-down, whereas the "adways gathering”
shippersdid. WFS asserts that Houston Exploration and Apache were dready paying for
full NPI gathering service, whereas Shell was receiving a“freeride” prior to spin-down
because Shell was not paying for NPl gathering service in what it refersto as WFSs "NH
zone" WFS datesthat it is"totally consstent with the zone rate concept for Houston
Exploration and Apache to pay nothing extra to ship farther in an expanded ‘NPl zone' and

for Shdl, who was paying no gathering charge in WFSs'NPI zone,' to incur anew gathering

“Sarkla, 67 FERC at 61,871.

0111 Areeda & Turner, Antitrust Law  726(€) (1978).
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charge in its new contract to begin gathering service in the 'NPI zone"* WFS also
curioudy daimsthat it is not discriminating againg Shell in comparison to the "adways
gathering” shippers because the "dways gathering” shippers now pay nothing extrato ship
farther in an expanded "NPI zone," whereas WFS wants to charge an additiona 8 centsfor
service on the 20-inch diameter line.

33.  WFSsreferencesto rates charged or not charged on what it confusingly refersto as
the "NPI zone" (which apparently combines the NPl system with the "aways gathering”
upstream system) are inaccurate. In fact, these references show that WFS's behavior
discriminates againgt Shell. Houston Exploration and Apache flow gas through the "dways
gathering” 16-inch diameter lineinto the subject NPI system's 20-inch diameter line. At dl
times prior to the spin-down of the 20-inch diameter line, service provided on that line to
the "always gathering” line shippers, Houston Exploration and Apache, was subject to
Transco's | T-Feeder rate and WFS could not lawfully charge them anything extra for that
service on that line since it was Transco's jurisdictiond facilities and not part of their
"dways gathering” fadilities. Like Shell, they paid Transco the | T-Feeder rate to have their
gas transported from the receipt point on the 20-inch diameter line to Transco's mainline,
approximately 230 milesaway. The I T-Feeder rate recovered the cost of the NPI system
fadlities. Thus it is discriminatory to permit Houston Exploration and Apache to pay
"nothing extra' to ship their gas on the same 20-inch diameter line that Transco/WFS have
now demanded an additiona 8-cent rate from Shell. Further, and for the same reasons,
WFS's arguments about proper "NPI zone" rates make no sense.

34. In addition, as discussed above, the record does not support the foregoing clams
regarding "freg" service on the subject NPl system facilities. At dl times addressed by
Transco and WFS, the cost of the NPI system facilities was rolled into and recovered by
Transco's | T-Feeder rates, which Shell and the other shippers on the NPI system paid to
Transco. Asaresult, no other charge could lawfully be exacted for such servicesand, in
particular, WFS had no authority to charge anything for service on those facilities thet it did
not own. Accordingly, the foregoing rate comparisons are unsupportable.

35.  WFStakesissue with the Commission's adoption of the ALJs finding that Transco's
falure to sdll the subject facilities on the open market is evidence of concerted action.*® It
contends that it was lawful for Transco to sl the facilities to its affiliate in that manner.

WFS dso contends that the Commission’s finding would give the Commisson de facto
authority over the sale of assets of natural gas companies, dthough the Commission has

4N\WFS's Rehearing Request at 41.

8| D., 99 FERC at 65,241.
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held that it does not have authority over the sdle of assets of natural gas companies. WFS
dso damstha, if atrandfer to athird party were to occur, the saes price would be a
market price above net book value and would yield an NPl gathering rate that would exceed
the Commission’s 1.69-cent rate and would not be NGA-regulated.

36.  Whileit may have been lawful for Transco to sl the subject facilitiesto its
affiliates, its fallure to seek other buyers who may have offered more for the facilitiesis
conduct consistent with what the record reflects were its private, concerted actions with its
affiliste designed to capture monopoly profitsin circumvention of our regulation. Further,
contrary to Transco's argument, the Commission has exercised its authority in another case
to revoke Transco's abandonment by sde of naturd gas transmission faciliti es® However,
our reliance on Transco's conduct does not, in any way, implicate our jurisdiction regarding
the e of facilities. Findly, WFSs clam regarding arate it might have recaived from a
third party is speculative and, in any event, irrelevant since rates charged by unaffiliated
third parties do not raise questions of circumvention of our NGA regulation of the pipdine.

D. OCSLA Issues

37.  The September 5, 2002 Order found that Transco violated the OCSLA because "the
gathering rates, terms and conditions of service [offered by WFS] congtitute a barrier to

open and nondiscriminatory access under OCSLA Section 5.%° Transco and WFS dispute
this finding, arguing that the "open and nondiscriminatory access' requirement goplies only

to denial of physical access, not "economic access,’®* and that Shell was offered the same
contract clauses as the other NP1 spin-down producers, so there has been no

discrimination. WFS aso argues that the Commission should look &t the rates charged by

an OCS provider, not the contract terms, and that the 8-cent gathering rate for Shell isa

“4STranscontinental Gas Pi pe Line Corp., 102 FERC 1 61,074, order onreh'g,
103 FERC 161,118 (2003).

S0Sentember 5, 2002 Order, 100 FERC 61,254 at P 43.

Sn support of its dlaim, WFS refers to an excerpt from the legidative history of the
OCSLA inwhich Congress stated that the OCSLA is meant to “prevent bottleneck
monopolies and other anticompetitive Stuations involving OCS pipelines’ and to “promote
efficiency and sound planning involving pipdine szing.” WFSs Rehearing Request at 54-
55, diting House Conf. Rept. No. 1474, 95" Cong. 2d Sess. 115, reprinted in 1978
U.S.C.C.A.N. 1674, 1714 at 1686. Contrary to WFS's claim, this excerpt supports the
Commission's action in light of the Commisson's finding that Transco/WFS have a
monopoly on gathering services available to Shell.
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ressonable gathering rate in the region and for the NPl system specifically. Findly, WFS
argues that WFS did not discriminate againgt Shell because the ban on discrimination under
the OCSLA does not prohibit different rates or conditions of service for different shippers
if the shippers are not Similarly situated >

38.  Transco/WFS were unduly discriminatory in increasing the rates for Shell while not
increasing the rates for other amilarly-stuated shippers, such as Houston, for services
provided them on the same NPI system facilities. Moreover, even an OCS service provider
offering uniform rates and conditions of service is not immunized from charges of
discrimination or adenial of access™> The OCSLA's "open and nondiscriminatory access'
requirement is not limited to customers being denied physical access. Charging high rates
may have the effect of violating the OCSLA's open access requirement, particularly if the
service provider's customers lack any transportation dternatives™ While the Commission
recognizesthat it has stated that it will consider rates charged by regiona competitors for
comparable service in making such a determination, ™ as discussed above, thereis no
competition within the rlevant market here. Moreover, the rates, terms and conditions of
sarvice offered to Shell were so uneconomic and anticompetitive that they compelled Shell
to shut-in its gas and therefore acted as a barrier to Shell’ s access to the NP1 system
facilities. That was sufficient, in our opinion, to violate Section 5 of the OCSLA.

39. WFSassartsthat it was adenid of due process for the Commission to initiate
expedited hearing procedures when WFS offered to make Shell revenue neutral regardless
of the timing of the Commisson'sdecison in thiscase. WFS states that, because the

Initid Decison did not consder the OCSLA or conclude the OCSLA had been violated, the
Commission failed to give notice that the Commission might assert jurisdiction under the
OCSLA inthe Shell complaint in Docket No. RP02-99. We disagree. The ALJwas
gpecificaly ingtructed by the March 6, 2002 Order establishing hearing procedures to
develop afactud record to determine whether the open and nondiscriminatory access
requirements of OCSLA Section 5 have been or will be violated, and if so, what the
appropriate remedies should be under the OCSLA.® While the ALJ adopted the agreement
of the parties and did not render an initia decision on those issues, we found that the

52Citim Order No. 639 at 31,538; Order No. 639-A at 31,686.

535ee Order No. 639 at 31,539.

54

=)

55|

o

%6\ arch 6, 2002 Order, 98 FERC at 62,014.
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factual record the ALJ developed sufficed to render OCSLA rulings®’ Thus, the parties
were on notice that OCSLA issues were to be addressed, our September 5, 2002 Order
addressed them based on the record evidence, and now, on rehearing, the parties have had
their due process opportunity to respond to the Commission's decision thereon. No error
was committed.

40. Findly, WFS clams that, assuming the Commission has the authority to assart a
violation of the OCSLA against WFS in Docket No. RP02-99, the Commission's OCSLA
finding isin error because Section 5(f) of the OCSLA refers to an offshore pipeline
providing “open and nondiscriminatory access to both owner and nonowner shippers.
WEFS argues that there are no owner shippers on the NPl system; therefore, OCSLA Section
5(f) does not apply inthiscase. Thisargument is groundless. Section 5(f) of the OCSLA
mandates "open and nondiscriminatory access' to the transportation of gas shipped by al
shippers, regardless of whether they are owner shippers or nonowner shippers.

158

E. The Commission's Remedy

41. In the September 5, 2002 Order, having reasserted NGA jurisdiction over the
subject gathering rates and services, the Commission found that Transco/WFS's proposed
8-cent gathering rate was unjust and unreasonable, and otherwise unlawful under the NGA.
Basad on the record, and Transco's calculation of the cost of service and rates for the NP
system facilitiesfiled in itsrelated genera NGA Section 4 rate case, the Commission

found ajust and reasonable rate for gathering service on the NPl system fecilities to be
1.69 cents per Dth.®

42.  WFSdamsthat the Commission'srate remedy violated NGA Section 5 because the
Commission’s focus on WFS's 8-cent gathering rate in determining that the current rate
being charged is unjust and unreasonable only established whether the NGA should apply
and that Transco should now be the provider of the NPI gathering services. WFS argues
that, to determine the NGA rate for Transco to charge would require an analysis of whether
Transco's systemwide rate design for gathering servicesis just and reasonable at NP1, and if
it is shown not to be just and reasonable, the Commission must then show that the facility-
gpecific 1.69-cent gathering rate for the NPI system isjust and reasonable.

S7September 5, 2002 Order, 100 FERC 1 61,254 at P 56.
8Quiting 43 U.S.C. 1334(f)(1)(A) (1986) (emphasis added).

9September 5, 2002 Order, 100 FERC {61,254 at P 57-58.
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43.  Wedisagree that the Commission did not meet the standards of NGA Section 5.
The Commission, in fact, met the standards of NGA Section 5 by finding that the 8-cent
gathering rate offered to Shell was unjust and unreasonable, and otherwise unlawful under
the NGA. The Commission then took officid notice of Transco's compliancefiling inits
general NGA Section 4 rate case, in Docket No. RP01-245-007, and used Transco’s own
figures for the cost of service of the NPI system facilities to caculate the 1.69-cent rate as
ajust and reasonable replacement rate.

44.  The September 5, 2002 Order stated that “[s]ince Transco does not currently have an
unbundled gathering rate in its tariff, it mugt file revised tariff sheetsto reflect the

approved unbundled gathering rate of 1.69 cents per Dth for service on the subject
gathering facilities, effective as of the date of this order.”®! WFS states that the
Commission erred in setting an incremental 1.69-cent gathering rate rather than
redesigning Transco's systemwide 19.61-cent gathering rate, adjusted for NPI costs and
billing determinants. Keyspan argues that what it characterizes as Transco's current
systemwide 19.61-cent gathering rate should be applied to the NPl system facilities unless
the Commission finds, under Section 5 of the NGA, that gpplying the rate would be unjust
and unreasonable. Keyspan argues that there has been no showing that it is ingppropriate
for Transco to charge NPI gathering shippers arate for gathering service that is equivalent
to the rates charged to other Transco gathering service shippers.

45,  The Commission darifies that its statement regarding Transco not currently having
an unbundled gathering rate in its tariff referred specificaly to the absence of an unbundled
gathering rate for service on the subject NPl gathering facilities, not to Transco’s maximum
lawful unbundled gathering rate approved in the settlement in Docket No. RP01-245-008.
The maximum lawful gathering rate was not designed to recover the cost of the NPI system
fecilities and appliesto gas ddivered at certain specified points on Transco's system, which
do not include points on the NPl system facilities. The Commission’s reassertion of
jurisdiction in this proceeding is narrowly confined to gathering rates and services on the
subject NPI gathering facilities rather than to Transco's systlemwide gathering services. In
our judgment, it is ingppropriate to unravel Transco's exigting, settled maximum lawful
gathering rate and evauate that rate on a cost-of-service basis due to the Commission’s
reassertion of jurisdiction with respect to the rates and services on the NPl system
facilities. Based on the unique facts of this case, we find it the least intrusive and the most
consgtent with the Commission's unbundling policies for Transco to reflect the rate impact
on an incrementd basis for providing service on the NPl system facilities. Accordingly, we

%0see 1d. at Appendix.

61 |d. at P58,
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do not find that the reassertion of jurisdiction over the rates and services on the NPl system
facilities necesstates a change in Transco' s exigting settled gathering rate,

46.  Transco argues that the Commission'simpaosition of an NGA rate remedy of the
Commission's own making is contrary to the basic scheme of the NGA because it does not
presume a company-made rate in the first instance, and is based on data outside the record,
given the absence of any hearing record addressing the issue of potential rate remedy.

47.  Transco/WFS proposed arate, 8 cents per Dth, which the Commission regjected as
unjust and unreasonable. NGA Section 5 permits the Commission to replace such a
rejected rate with ajust and reasonablerate. In this case, the Commission found ajust and
reasonable rate to be 1.69 cents per Dth. Moreover, the Commission did not bar Transco
from filing alimited NGA Section 4 filing to propose a different rate. In addition, the cost
data upon which the Commission based its rate ca culation was supplied by Transco itsdf in
the compliance filing in its related generd NGA Section 4 rate case in Docket No. RPO1-
245. Thus, there was no error.

48.  Transco dso argues that it should have been afforded itsright to make rates that will
fully recover dl capital invesment cogts, including a"push down'" (or good will) premium,
defined as the premium that TWC paid over book value to acquire Transco.%? Specificaly,
Transco states that, in addition to the net book cost (original cost net of accumulated
depreciation) being trandferred to WFS from Transco's FERC accounting books, WFS aso
incurred in the spin-down transaction a" push-down™ premium of $4 million transferred to
WEFS from Transco's corporate accounting books, which represents that portion of the total
goodwill premium paid in acquiring Transco which, in turn, was alocated to the NPl spin-
down facilities® Transco argues that the $4 million "push down" premium resulted from
Transco's transfer of the NPI assets to a nonjurisdictiona entity, WFS, condtitutesa"gain”
above the net book vaue of the NPI assets that should inure to the benefit of Transco's
shareholders. Similarly, WFS argues that whet it assartsis the "acquisition price’ for the
NPI system facilities should be digible for consgderation for incluson in the rate base as

an acquisition adjustment. In support of its clam, WFS cites to Crossroads Pipeline Co.
(Crossroads),?* where an affiliate's acquisition cost for a pipeline was reflected in the rate

%2See Tr. 975.
83See Transco's Rehearing Request at 63 n.42.

6471 FERC 161,076 (1995).
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base and Delhi Gas Fipdline Corp. (Delhi),®® where the purchase price in excess of
depreciated origina cost was included in the rate base.

49. Having found, in effect, that the spin-down of WFS was a sham transaction, the
Commission will not permit Transco to burden ratepayers with a $4 million chimera. In
any event, asthe ALJ notes, at the hearing, Transco and WFS claimed for the firgt time that
the total amount of the purchase price was $5.25 million, or $4.0 million above the $1.25
million book value of the fadilities®® This claim contradicts Transco's representations to
the Commission in its spin-down application that the transfer price was the $1.25 million
net book value of NPI.%7 1t is generd Commission policy not to allow pipelines to recover
an acquigtion premium through its jurisdictiona rates so that gas customers are not
burdened with an increase in the asset costs Smply due to a change in the ownership of the
fadlity.%8 To include the full purchase price in rate base when an acquisition premium has
been paid, the acquiring company must show that: (1) it is either converting utility assetsto
anew public use, or it isplacing utility assetsin FERC jurisdictiond service for the first
time; and (2) the acquisition provides substantial, quantifiable benefits to ratepayers® This
test has not been met with respect to the NPI system facilities.

50. WFSsrdiance on Crossroads and Ddhi is misplaced because the factud
circumgtances differ sgnificantly from the facts presented here. In Crossroads, the
Commission gpproved the inclusion of the acquisition cogisin the rate base because the
proceeding involved the converson of an ail pipeline and a determination that the costs
associated with the acquisition of the pipeline ong with the new congtruction costs, would
be consderably less than the costs associated with congtructing a new pipeine. Smilarly,
in Ddhi, the Commisson found it gppropriate to use the purchase price as the origina cost
of the facility for ratemaking purposes because gas consumers had not paid for the facility
in prior rates since the facilities had not yet been dedicated to interstate gas service a the
time of purchase. Therefore, gas customers had not been burdened with an increase in the

%543 FERC 161,024 (1988).
%).D., 99 FERC at 65,254.
%71.D., 99 FERC at 65,254 diting Item by Reference B at 8 and C at 8.

®8Commission Staff's Initia Brief citing Kansas Pipeline Co., 96 FERC 1 63,014 at
65,061-62 (2001) and the cases cited therein. See dso Ddhi, 43 FERC at 61,067-68.

69See K ansas Pipdline Co., 96 FERC at 65,061.
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asset costs simply because of achange in the ownership of the facility.” By contrast, the
NPl system facilities at issue here had been committed to jurisdictiona natura gas service
and the cogts of the facilities were recovered in jurisdictiond rates. Asaresult, it would
conflict with Commission policy to permit the aleged acquisition "price” for the NP

system facilities to be included in the rate base. Furthermore, Transco's suggestion that the
$4 million "push down" premium should be recovered, because the NP facility assets were
transferred to WFS, anon-jurisdictiond entity, lacks merit since the Commission has
reasserted jurisdiction over the rates and services provided on the NPI system fecilities.
Accordingly, the Commission's policy barring recovery of an acquisition premium through
jurisdictiona rates continues to apply.

51.  Thus, we agree with the ALJ that the $4.0 million "push down" premium frustrates
the Commission's regulation of Transco by the corporation's concerted attempt to recover
cogts through the WFS gathering rate, which the regulated entity could not recover in its
own jurisdictional rates.” We agree that shifting these WFS costs to the jurisdictional
rates of Transco, by means of the affiliated relationship of Transco and WFS, frustrates our
regulation of Transco.’?

52. WFS argues that the Commission erred in gpplying the remedies of the

September 5, 2002 Order to Superior Natural Gas Corporation and Walter Oil & Gas
Corporation (collectively, Walter) because they are settling parties in the separate,
unconsolidated proceeding in Docket No. RP02-144. WFS argues that, by imposing an
unbundled gathering rate of 1.69 cents per Dth on the "subject spin-down gathering
facilities on the NPI system, i.e., over the 3.83-mile, 10-inch diameter and the 18.79-mile,
20-inch diameter pipelinesthat end in NPI Block 956,"" the September 5, 2002 Order
wrongly extended the 1.69-cent rate remedy in the Shell complaint to the gathering service
on line used by Walter. WFS aso contends that the September 5, 2002 Order's
requirement that Transco "file dl contracts that govern service on the subject NP1 gathering
facilities"™ wrongly required thefiling of the gathering contract between WFS and Walter
for Wadter's gathering service on the NPl system facilities.

pehi, 43 FERC at 61,068.

1 .D., 99 FERC at 65,254-55.

21d. at 65,255-56.

"3September 5, 2002 Order, 100 FERC {61,254 at P 57.

"41d. at P58.
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53.  The Commission applied the 1.69-cent rate to the services performed on the
"subject NP facilities," defined as the 3.83-mile and 18.79-mile pipdinesthat end in NP
Block 956" where they both deliver gasinto a Transco pipeine. Walter currently receives
gathering service through the NPl system facilities pursuant to a gathering agreement with
WEFS. Based on the settlement agreement reached between Walter and WFS, the
September 5, 2002 Order affirmed the ALJs decison to dismiss Walter's complaint in
Docket No. RP02-144-000 with prejudice.”® The dismissal of Walter's complaint,
however, did not change the issue in the proceeding, i.e., whether to reassert jurisdiction
over the rates and services for gathering on the NPI system fecilities. The 1.69-cent rate
applies as the maximum recourse rate for dl gas flowing through the NPI system facilities,
including Walter's gas.”” In addition, the NP gathering rate schedule and form of service
agreements apply to dl such throughput aswell. Therefore, as the Commisson stated in its
letter order on Transco's compliance filing, issued on February 6, 2003, if the contracts for
service on the NP1 system facilities differ in amateria respect from the tariff and form of
service agreement, then Transco must file such contracts.”® Further, if the contracts
contain a negotiated rate, Transco mugt ether file the contract or tariff sheets summarizing
the contract for any services subject to a negotiated rate.

The Commission orders.

Asdiscussed in the body of this order, the requests for rehearing by Transco, WFS
and Keyspan are hereby denied.

By the Commisson. Commissioner Brownd | dissenting with a separate satement
attached.

g, at P57.
®1d. at P 62.

""As explained in the September 5, 2002 Order, the calculation of 1.69-cent rateis
based on the cost of service and rates for the NPI system facilities, which Transco
submitted in its January 18, 2001 compliance filing in Docket No. RP01-245-007. Inthe
information provided by Transco in RP01-245-007, the cost of service for the spin-down
facilities includes costs of both the 10-inch diameter and the 20-inch diameter pipelines.
However, in deriving the rate, the Commission used only the volumes associated with the
20-inch diameter pipeline, since that was the only information on NPl system volumesin
the record. Making volume adjustment to the rate caculation to reflect additiona volumes
on the 10-inch diameter line would decrease the rate from the current rate of 1.69 cents.

"8ghd| Offshore Inc. v. Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corp,, et a., 102 FERC
161,156 (2003).
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(SEAL)

MagdieR. Sdas,
Secretary.
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION

Shdl Offshore Inc,
V. Docket No. RP02-99-006

Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line

Corporation
Williams Gas Processing-

Gulf Coast Company, L.P.
Williams Fied Services Company, and
Williams Gulf Coest Gethering

Company, L.L.C.

(Issued May 15, 2003)
BROWNELL, Commissioner, dissenting

1. | voted for the September 5 order. However, making the right decision in this case
has not been clear-cut or easy. Upon further consideration, | am persuaded that the
Commission should grant rehearing based on the particular facts of this case, applicable law
and a proven regulatory policy that enhances competition.

2. Section 1(b) of the Natura Gas Act (NGA) exempits gathering from the
Commission'sjurisdiction. The Natura Gas Policy Act of 1978 and the Naturd Gas

W lhead Decontrol Act of 1989 phased out al wellhead price controls. In 1985, the
Commission promulgated Order No. 436 which established a program of open-access, non-
discriminatory transportation by which gas distribution companies and industrid end-users
could buy gas directly from gas merchants other than the pipdines and ship that gas on the
interstate pipdines. Then, in 1992, the Commission issued Order No. 636 which mandated
the unbundling of gas sdes and interdtate trangportation. Having exited the merchant
business, many pipelines began to transfer their gathering facilities to other entities, ether

an dfiliate or anon-affiliate. In numerous cases, the Commission has found the public
convenience and necessity warranted such transfers because the intergtate pipeline could
eliminate unnecessary expenses and the stand-aone gatherer could more efficiently utilize
the fadilities involved here. We made that exact finding about these facilities. That finding
was condstent with the Commission's evolving

gpproach to the regulation of the natural gas industry which is a pro-competition policy that
relies on market forces to play a greater role in determining supply, demand and price of
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naturd gas. So on rehearing, the fundamental question for me iswhether Transco and its
affiliates acted in amanner that frustrates our effective regulation of the interstate pipeline
and whether the Commission needs to reassert jurisdiction over these gathering facilities.

3. For thefirst time, the Commission is reassarting jurisdiction over spun-down
gathering facilities. | do not think the facts of this case, applicable law and sound
regulatory policy warrant such an action. The evidence of cooperdtive action between
Transco and WFS is mixed. The fact that Transco and WFS worked together in planning and
implementing the spin-down of the facilities pending transfer is not surprising nor fatd. To
me, such cooperation pending the spin-down isapracticd, efficient trangtiona sep. The
fact that the corporate parent, the Williams Companies, would try to maximize the value of
its assets by pursuing the spin-down pursuant to a business plan makes sound business
sense. The evidence indicates that Transco did not, after the transfer of assets, manage,
operate or provide service on the gathering facilities. Transco aversthat it never contacted
WEFS in connection with producer/shippers for gathering service. The fact that WFS
operated Transco's production area facilities, dbeit pursuant to an Operating Agreement, is
more problematic and we should require complete separation.  But, as the Presiding Judge
stated:

No party clamsthat these overlapping system-coordinated activities by themsdaves
arewrong or unlawful. Infact, as agenerd matter, they may afford economies of
scde and efficiencies that provide benefits to both the customers and the two

service providers—aclassic win/win situation. 99 FERC 63,034 at 65,241 (2002)

4, Therefore, the frustration of our regulation of the interstate pipeine is not
grounded, per se, in the finding of cooperative actions between Transco and WFS. The
Presiding Judge found that the cooperative actions frustrated our regulation of the
interdtate pipdine because it effectively dlowed the unbundled rate for gathering service to
be sgnificantly increased above the bundled rate that was being charged prior to the spin-
off. Other evidence indicates that the unbundled gathering rate is reflective (some times
higher, some times lower) of the rates for gathering service on other systemsin the
surrounding offshore area.

5. Asdiscussed in Order No. 636, it is appropriate to segregate and charge separate
rates for separate services, rather than continue to compel shippersto pay abundled charge
for severd digtinct services. When we authorized the spin-down, the Commission
recognized, asit hasin anumber of spin-down cases, that shippers may pay a higher rate.
Thisis neither inequitable nor unwarranted rate stacking. In this case, there is evidence that
the unbundled gathering is smply the going competitive rate.

6. | have not been persuaded that the rates proposed to be charged by WFS for non-
jurisdictiona service have so compromised our ability to regulate the jurisdictiona service



Docket No. RP02-99-006 -3-

on the interstate pipdine that we should reassert rate jurisdiction over these gathering

fadilities. The Commisson will continue to employ its NGA authority to ensure that

Transco's rates remain just and reasonable. Moreover, | am hard pressed to distinguish this
gtuation from Conoco, Inc. v. FERC, 90 F.3d 536 (D.C. Cir. 1996), cert. denied sub nom.,
AMOCO Energy Trading Corp. v. FERC, 519 U.S. 1142 (1997). In Conoco, the court ruled
that the Commission lacked jurisdiction to require a pipdine spinning down its gathering
facilitiesto offer default contracts to existing gathering customers at rates consistent with

their existing Commission-gpproved rates. Having authorized the facilities to be soun

down, the Commission logt jurisdiction to regulate service on them ether directly or

indirectly.

7. This order and Sunoco, Inc. v. Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporétion,

103 FERC /61,176 (2003), also being issued today, both raise the question of whether the
NGA grants the Commission resdud authority once it authorizes a pipeline to spin-off its
gathering facilities. While | disagree with my fellow Commissioners on this question, |
share their concern about the possibility of offshore pipelines spinning-off their gathering
facilities for the purpose evading their contractua obligations or exercising market power.
The competitive scheme for regulating the naturd gas industry has been working well to
this point. However, given the growing divergence of supply and demand for naturd gas, it
may be time to solicit input from al segments of the industry about what the Commission
can do, within our exidting jurisdiction, to ensure the maximum exploitation of our
offshore gas supplies. | would aso welcome a public debate over whether offshore
pipdines are, in fact, abusing their ability to spin-off gathering facilities and, if so, whether
any statutory changes are needed.

For these reasons, | respectfully dissent.

Nora Mead Browndl
Commissioner



